
 

 

 

Golden Empire Transit District 

Addendum #1 for RFP#G130 Security Guard Services 
 

Golden Empire Transit District is issuing this Addendum to answer questions raised by 

proposers for the Request for Proposals named above. 

 

Question 1.  Is there a specific set of miles that the security office needs to be in relation to the 

five (5) facility locations?  

Response 1. In Kern County 

Question 2. Do we price an additional officer dedicated only to the response of alarms at the 

district office, or is this part of the scope of work for the officers posted at this location? 

Response 2. The outlined 2600 hours are for stationary security officers. They must remain at 

their post. In additional requests are for an added security officer or supervisor. 

Question 3. : Do we price an additional officer dedicated only to respond to bus emergencies on 

the roads in Bakersfield, or is this part of the scope of work for the officers posted at the district 

office facility?  

Response 3.  The outlined 2600 hours are for stationary security officers. They must remain at 

their post. Additional requests are for an added security officer or supervisor. 

Question 4.  Are the Supervisor hours billable? 

Response 4. Yes but they are included in the 2600 per month. 

Question 5. In addition to the 180 hours/month outlined in this section, can you please provide an 

approximate number of additional Supervisor hours that have been need within the past 12 

months so we can price appropriately? 

Response 5. That information is provided on page 6 “service hours” and “additional hours” 

Question 6. : In the event officers are required to work on holidays, are those hours billable at 

overtime rate? 



 

 

Response 6. No. You need to incorporate holiday pay into one hourly rate that Golden Empire 

Transit will pay. 

Question 7. Can you please provide a list of holidays that GET acknowledges?  

Answer 7. For purposes of this contract we do not acknowledge holidays, if your company 

acknowledges holidays please include that in the one hourly rate you submit in your proposal 

Question 8. Does the client have a specific list of equipment items that should be provided to 

officers in addition to radios, cellular phones, baton, handcuffs outlined within this RFP 

Answer 8. Handcuffs, Baton and Pepper Spray and cellphone for each location. 

Question 9. As discussed on our pre-bid conference call, please confirm that required clock 

in/out timesheets can be substituted with electronic digital timekeeping records.   

Answer 9. Yes as long as they can be printed or transferred to a Word/Excel document. 

Question 10. In order to keep digital timekeeping records, security officers must be able to use 

their smartphones with Inter-Con’s proprietary software.  Will officers be able to use their 

phones onsite to do so? 

Answer 10. Yes but only for timekeeping or emergency purposes. 

Question 11. Does the client have a desired minimum number of required training hours for 

security officers, or is this left up to the security provider’s discretion? 

Answer 11. Twice per year at no more than 8 hours in total 

Question 12. Who is the current security provider? 

Answer 12. Information can be provided to the awarded firm upon request 

Question 13. What are the current pay and bill rates? 

Answer 13. Information can be provided to the awarded firm upon request 

Question 14. How many vehicles are required? 

Answer 14. As many as your needs to perform the services outlined in the RFP 

Question 15. What is the estimated annual mileage per vehicle? 

Answer 15. We have not used security/vehicles for this purpose in the past. Therefore there is 

currently no actual mileage we can provide. 

  



 

 

Question 16. What is the preferred vehicle size? 

Answer 16. Vehicle that can carry a minimum of 4 people. 

Question 17. Are there any additional specifications required for the vehicles? (Ex. Spotlight, 

light bar, decals, etc.?) 

Answer 17. None, as long as the vehicle(s) are in safe working condition. 

Question 18. Excluding Thanksgiving and the Day after Thanksgiving as holidays, there will be 

only three business days between bidders receiving the Q&A answers and the submission 

deadline. Will the Golden Empire Transit District consider extending the deadline to give bidders 

more time to incorporate the answers into their responses? 

Answer 18. Unfortunately not. However we will attempt to provide a response to the questions 

via addendum earlier than listed in the RFP 

Question 19. Are bidders to submit this 30-day start up plan with the bid? 

Answer 19. Yes 

Question 20. We plan to hire as many of the incumbent force as possible. May bidders supply 

job descriptions in lieu of Security Guards’ information with pictures/phone numbers, as we do 

not have that information at this time? 

Answer 20. Yes 

Question 21. We typically provide only our annual financials rather than monthly financials. 

May we provide our 2020 financial statement to satisfy this item? 

Answer 21. Yes 

Question 22. The Emergency Situations section states that guards must be able to summon police 

within thirty seconds. Does the Golden Empire Transit District mean that a guard must dial 911 

within thirty seconds? It is impossible to ensure a police presence within thirty seconds unless 

they are already on site. 

Answer 22. Yes, guards must be able to dial 911 within thirty seconds 

Question 23. As there is no requirement for disadvantaged business participation for this bid and 

we typically do not subcontract our services unless required, are bidders still required to make 

reasonable efforts to secure disadvantaged business participation? 

Answer 23. DBE participation is not required. However, we do encourage it, please refer to Page 

10 Section 4 – Evaluation of Bids. 



 

 

Question 24. Who is the current incumbent? 

Answer 24. Information can be provided to the awarded firm upon request  

Question 25. When was the current incumbent awarded the contract? Could you please provide 

us copy of current contract? 

Answer 25. Information can be provided to the awarded firm upon request  

Question 26. Are there any subcontractors being used for the current contract? 

Answer 26. Information can be provided to the awarded firm upon request 

Question 27. What was the initial term length of the current contract (for example, 1 year plus 4 

year options, etc.) 

Answer 27. Information can be provided to the awarded firm upon request 

Question 28. What was the start date of the initial contract? 

Answer 28. Information can be provided to the awarded firm upon request 

Question 29. What was the amount spent in the last 12 months? 

Answer 29. Information can be provided to the awarded firm upon request  

Question 30. What was the total spent in the last in the last billed month? 

Answer 30. Information can be provided to the awarded firm upon request 

Question 31. Are there any other rates billed separately (such as equipment, vehicles, etc.) 

Answer 31. No, please include all into one hourly rate that Golden Empire Transit will pay. 

Question 32. Are there any significant modifications from the previous contract to the new one? 

For instance, an increase in hours, a change in guard type (e.g., armed vs unarmed), a need for 

additional resources? 

Answer 32. No 

Question 33. What was the amount spent on this contract last year? 

Answer 33. Information can be provided to the awarded firm upon request 

Question 34. What is the current bill rate for each position? 

Answer 34. Information can be provided to the awarded firm upon request 

  



 

 

Question 35. Are there any additional services that may be needed that are not listed in the RFP? 

For instance, the need of additional sites, seasonal required security, etc. 

Answer 35. No 

Question 36. Beyond the state and federal minimum wage, is there a prevailing wage, living 

wage ordinance, local mandated wage, or contract-specific wage? 

Answer 36. No 

Question 37. Is there a specific way you would like the response to be prepared? For example: 

bound, unbound, 3-ring binder(s), pages limits, paper type, etc.? 

Answer 37. No, as long as the information requested in the Scope of work is defined in your 

proposal, for evaluation purposes 

Question 38. Is the current contract using vehicles? If yes, how many? 

Answer 38. No 

Question 39. Can we acquire the DBE points through subcontracting a qualified DBE firm, if so 

what percentage of the contract would be required to achieve full points? 

Answer 39. Yes, we do encourage DBE, please refer to Page 10 Section 4 – Evaluation of Bids. 

Question 40. Were there any liquidation penalties on the previous contract? 

Answer 40. Information can be provided to the awarded firm upon request 

Question 41. We note that bids are due on November 25, which is Thanksgiving Day. Can the 

due date be extended to November 29 to accommodate the holiday weekend? 

Answer 41. Yes, the deadline has been extended on the RFP until November 29, 2021 

Question 42. We note the requirement in Section 2.M of the RFP that “Security Service 

employees must be bonded under a Blanket Third Party Bond.” The dishonest acts of our 

company’s employees are covered by commercial crime insurance, but we do not bond 

employees. May the requirements of Section 2.M of the RFP be satisfied by commercial crime 

insurance? 

Answer 42. Yes, in this case the insurance will suffice 

Question 43. We note the requirement in Part I Section 13(b)(1) of the RFP for a Certificate of 

Insurance reflecting the District as an additional insured “prior to the District’s issuance of a 

contract.” Our insurance broker has advised that a certificate of insurance reflecting a client as an 

additional insured cannot be issued until the client has an “insurable interest” in our insurance 



 

 

policies, and the client will not acquire an “insurable interest” until execution of a contract. Can 

the cited section be revised to require issuance of a Certificate of Insurance “upon execution by 

the District of a contract”? 

Answer 43. Yes, Insurance certificate will be needed upon execution of a contract with awarded 

firm 

Question 44. Our company routinely adds clients as additional insureds on our insurance 

policies, so long as our obligations are limited to the extent of our negligence.  The blanket 

additional insured endorsements to all of our policies automatically cover any party we are 

required by written contract to cover as an additional insured, to the extent set forth in such 

contract, without the necessity of expressly naming such party. Can Part I Section 13(b)(1) be 

replaced with the following to reflect those parameters? 

Answer 44. Insurance certificate will be needed upon execution of a contract with awarded firm 

Question 45. Can Part II Section 4.a.1 of the RFP be revised to give the Contractor the reciprocal 

right to terminate for convenience on 120 days’ prior written notice? 

Answer 45. Federal Transit Administration grants our agency the “Termination for 

Convenience” clause under 2 C.F.R. § 200.339, 2 C.F.R. part 200, 

Question 46. We note that Price Bid Form states that the contract is comprised of a base year to 

be followed by up to four (4) option years. Is renewal up to the sole discretion of the District, or 

is renewal contingent on mutual agreement of the parties? 

Answer 46. Yes, but we are looking to sign a 5 year contract with mutual agreement 

Question 47. We note that the Price Bid Form contemplates submission of separate, adjusted 

rates for each year of the maximum 5-year term. Will the Contractor also be permitted to raise 

rates when and as needed to recoup increases in the following costs that are outside of the 

Contractor’s control: Federal, state or local taxes, levies, or required withholdings; costs under 

collective bargaining agreements; minimum, prevailing and living wage rates and other statutory 

requirements, such a legally mandated sick leave costs; and medical and other benefit costs? 

Answer 47. We understand that there are yearly increases and want to be fair to all firms 

proposing 

Question 48. No proposed contract is attached to the RFP. Please provide a copy of the contract. 

May bidders submit contract exceptions for the District’s consideration with their proposal? 

Answer 48. Yes, please see Attachment A of this addendum for the draft contract 

  



 

 

Question 49. May non-DBE firms acquire the 10 points available for DBE participation through 

subcontracting? If so, what percent needs to be subtracted to achieve all 10 points? 

Answer 49.  Yes, we do encourage DBE, please refer to Page 10 Section 4 – Evaluation of Bids 

Question 50. As there is no DBE goal set, is a good faith effort required? 

Answer 50. DBE goal is not set, but yes the good faith effort is required and must be returned as 

part of the required forms. 

Question 51. All sites and hours seem to add up with the exception of the sites that are M-F 

6:30am-11:30pm.  This would equate to 17 hours per day, and with two officers, would be a total 

of 34 hours per day. At 5 days per week in service, this would total 170 hours per week in 

service.  Multiplied by four weeks per month, this would total 680 hours per month (versus 660 

shown in RFP).  Please clarify whether providers will be providing 660, or 680 hours per week.  

If 660, please explain the schedule so we can understand how the hours will be provided. 

Answer 51. Yes the hours add up to 680.  

Question 52. RFP states that contractors must respond to “alarm response” and “bus 

emergencies”, up to approximately 10 times per month.  Is contractor allowed to bill for this 

response?  Is the billable amount on an hourly basis or on an occurrence basis?   

Answer 52. Yes it is billable on an occurrence basis but at the proposed hourly rate 

Question 53. We understand that scheduled additional hours will be billed at ordinary rates, but 

in the event GET asks for additional services on short notice, such as “we want officer A to stay 

on post for additional 3 hours” for which officer A will work in excess of an 8 hour workday 

thus require contractor to pay state mandated overtime rates, would contractor be allowed to bill 

for an overtime rate when this type of request is made? 

Answer 53. Yes in that event GET will request with sufficient time prior and will comply with 

all state mandated overtime rates 

Question 54. RFP states that one original proposal and one digital thumb drive shall be 

submitted, while on page 12 of 36 it states one original and one copy.  Please clarify what is 

required for submission. 

Answer 54. We are requesting one original hard copy proposal and one digital thumb drive copy 

Question 55. Please clarify if this form “Affidavit of DBE” is to be filled out by the prime?  Or 

should this form be filled out by a subcontracting DBE? If we subcontract some of the work to a 

DBE should they fill out this form, or should we fill out as prime? 



 

 

Answer 55. One shall be filled out by the prime stating they are not a DBE, and a second copy by 

the subcontractor stating they are a DBE 

Question 56. Can GET give guidance on how proposers should calculate “monthly cost” as this 

cost will vary depending on the days in a month?   Please confirm that invoices will be based on 

the actual number of hours of service provided in any given month, and not on a predetermined 

flat monthly cost that may not be applicable to the actual number of days and hours services are 

provided. 

Answer 56. All proposers shall base the “monthly cost” on 2600 approximate hours based on 

your proposed hourly rate 

Question 57. States employees must be “bonded” under a Blanket Third Party Bond.  For 

clarification, is the reference of a Bond a substitute for a blanket insurance policy?  Or does GET 

expect an actual “Bond” to be provided?  Employees under a contract like this would never be 

individually “bonded” but would be covered under an insurance policy.  Please clarify.  

Answer 57. Yes, in this case the insurance will suffice 

 

This Addendum constitutes an integral part of the RFP and shall be read in conjunction with the 

RFP. Where inconsistent with the original RFP, or any previous Addendum to the RFP, this 

Addendum shall govern. Unless specifically changed herein, all other requirements and 

provisions of the RFP remain unchanged and can only be modified if in writing by GET. It is the 

responsibility of all Proposers to conform to this Addendum.  

 

Addendum issued:             November 17, 2021. 

Solicitation Coordinator:  Victor Honorato-Purchasing Agent 

Contact information:         661-869-6326  

Email:                    vhonorato@getbus.org 

 

See next page for Attachment A: 
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Attachment A 

GOLDEN EMPIRE TRANSIT DISTRICT 

CONTRACT FOR SECURITY SERVICES RFP#G130 

 

This Agreement is made on                           between GOLDEN EMPIRE TRANSIT DISTRICT, 

with a principal place of business at 1830 Golden State Avenue, Bakersfield, California 93301 and 

____________________, with a principal place of business at _____________________________ 

 

ARTICLE 1.  TERM OF CONTRACT 

 

 1.01. This Agreement will become effective on the date above written, and will   

  continue in effect for sixty (60) months until all services have been performed by  

  Contractor, or until terminated as provided in this agreement. 

 

1.02. Work covered by this contract shall begin immediately following a Notice to Proceed 

issued by the District. 

 

 

ARTICLE 2. TYPE OF CONTRACT 

 

 2.01.  This Agreement shall be a fixed priced contract for 60 months, in the amount as listed 

  on the  “Proposed Bid Form” dated _______________ and not to exceed   

  ___________________________________________________ in sixty (60) months. 

 

 2.02. Contractor shall not expend monies or incur obligations in excess of the   

  stated amount of this Contract, for which the Contractor shall seek to hold   

  the District responsible. 

 

 

  



 

 

ARTICLE 3.  SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY CONTRACTOR 

 

3.01. Contractor agrees to perform the services as stated in the Request for Proposal 

#G130 Scope of Work.  

 In addition, the following documents are herein incorporated and are integral part of 

this contract: 

 District’s Request for Proposal #G130 dated October 18, 2021 in its entirety. 

 _______________’s proposal dated September 1, 2019     

           

   
 3.02. Contractor enters into this Agreement, and will remain throughout the term   

  of the Agreement, an independent Contractor.  Contractor agrees that   

  Contractor is not and will not become an employee, partner, agent or    

  principal of District while this Agreement is in effect. Contractor agrees   

  Contractor is not entitled to the rights or benefits afforded to District's   

  employees, including disability or unemployment insurance, workers'   

  compensation, medical insurance, sick leave or any other employment   

  benefit.  Contractor is responsible for providing, at Contractor's own    

  expense, disability, unemployment and other insurance, workers'    

  compensation, training, permits and licenses for Contractor and for    

  Contractor's employees and subcontractors. 

 

 3.03. Contractor is responsible for paying, when due, all income taxes, including   

  estimated taxes, incurred as a result of the compensation paid by District to   

  Contractor for services under this Agreement.  On request, Contractor will   

  provide District with proof of timely payment.  Contractor agrees to    

  indemnify District for any claims, costs, losses, fees, penalties, interest or   

  damages suffered by District resulting from Contractor's failure to comply   

  with this provision. 

 

 3.04. Contractor may, at Contractor's own expense, use any employees or    

  subcontractors as Contractor deems necessary to perform the services   

  required of Contractor by this Agreement.  District may not control, direct or  

  supervise Contractor's employees or subcontractors in the performance of   

  those services. 

 

  

  



 

 

ARTICLE 4.  COMPENSATION 

             4.01. In consideration for the services to be performed by Contractor, the District agrees to 

pay the Contractor on a monthly basis 

  

 4.02. Contractor will submit to the District a statement of services rendered at the end of  

  each month.  The District agrees to pay the amount due to the Contractor for services 

  within thirty (30) days of receipt of the statement  

 

 4.03.    Non-Compliance Penalty: Failure to provide a replacement officer within two hours  

  of notification shall result in a one hundred ($100) per hour penalty on the Security  

  Service firm for non-compliance, until a replacement officer is in position 

  

           

ARTICLE 5.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONTRACTOR 

 

 

 5.01. Contractor may represent, perform services for, and contract with as many   

  additional clients, persons or companies as Contractor, in Contractor's sole   

  discretion, sees fit. 

  

 5.02. Contractor will perform the services under this Agreement at such location or  

  locations as directed by the District. 

 

 5.03.    Contractor will supply all tools, materials, and equipment required to perform the  

  services under this Agreement. 

  

 5.04. Contractor agrees to provide workers' compensation insurance for    

  Contractor's employees and agents and agrees to hold harmless and    

  indemnify District for any and all claims arising out of any injury, disability   

  or death of any of Contractor's employees or agents. 

 



 

 

 5.05. Contractor agrees to maintain a policy of insurance in the minimum amount   

  of $1,000,000 to cover any negligent acts committed by Contractor or   

  Contractor's employees or agents during the performance of any duties under  

  this Agreement.  Contractor further agrees to indemnify and hold District   

  harmless from any and all claims arising from Contractor's negligent or   

  willful acts. 

 

 5.06. Contractor represents that Contractor has the qualifications and skills   

  necessary to perform the services under this Agreement in a competent,   

  professional manner, without the advice or direction of District.  This means   

  Contractor is able to fulfill the requirements of this Agreement.  Failure to   

  perform all the services required under this Agreement constitutes a material   

  breach of the Agreement.  Contractor has complete and sole discretion for   

  the manner in which the work under this Agreement will be performed. 

 

 5.07. Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold District free and harmless   

  from all claims, demands, losses, costs, expenses, obligations, liabilities,   

  damages, recoveries and deficiencies, including interest, penalties, attorneys'   

  fees and costs, that District may incur as a result of a breach by Contractor of  

  any representation or agreement contained in this Agreement. 

 

 5.08. Contractor acknowledges that District has adopted a policy of maintaining a   

  drug free work place, agrees to abide by the provisions of the District's   

  substance abuse policy, and acknowledges receiving a copy of said policy.    

  Violation of this provision may result in immediate termination of this   

  Agreement. 

 

 5.09. Neither this Agreement nor any duties or obligations under this Agreement   

  may be assigned by Contractor without the prior written consent of District. 

 

 5.10.    Contractor covenants and agrees to fully defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the  

  District, it’s employees and agents, from and against each and every claim, demand,  

  or cause of action, and any liability, cost, expenses (including, but not limited to  

  reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses incurred in defense of the District), damage  

  or loss in connection therewith, which may be made or asserted by Contractor,  

  Contractor’s employees, agents, subcontractors, or any third parties (including, but  

  not limited to the District’s agents, servants, or employees) on account of personal  

  injury or death or property damage to the extent caused by, arising out of, or in  



 

 

  connection with Contractor’s negligent performance of this Agreement, except such  

  as may result solely from the negligence of the District. 

   

ARTICLE 6.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE DISTRICT 

 

6.01.    It is understood the District may contract with any other person or entity during the 

term of this Agreement to provide the District with services described herein. 

 

6.02.    The District agrees to comply with all reasonable requests of the Contractor necessary 

to the performance of the Contractors duties under this agreement.  

 

6.03.    Neither this Agreement, nor any duties or obligations under this Agreement may be 

assigned by the District without the prior written consent of the Contractor.    

 

6.04.   The District agrees to furnish space, if needed, on District’s premises for use by 

Contractor while performing the above-described services.   

  

 6.05.    District covenants and agrees to fully defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the  

  Contractor, it’s employees and agents, from and against each and every claim,  

  demand, or cause of action, and any liability, cost, expenses (including, but not limited 

  to reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses incurred in defense of the Contractor),  

  damage or loss in connection therewith, which may be made or asserted by District,  

  District’s employees, agents, subcontractors, or any third parties (including, but  

  not limited to the District’s agents, servants, or employees) on account of personal  

  injury or death or property damage to the extent caused by, arising out of, or in  

  connection with District’s negligent performance of this Agreement, except such  

  as may result solely from the negligence of the Contractor. 

 

  

ARTICLE 7.  TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT 

 

 7.01. Unless otherwise terminated as provided in the Contract Documents, this   

  Agreement will continue in effect until such time as Contractor performs all   

  obligations imposed in the Contract Documents. 



 

 

 

 7.02. This Agreement will terminate at the option of the District on the occurrence   

  of any of the following events: 

 

 (a)  Bankruptcy or insolvency of Contractor. 

 (b)  Sale of the business of Contractor. 

 (c)  Death of Contractor. 

 7.03. If either party defaults in the performance of this Agreement or materially   

  breaches any of its provisions, the non-breaching party may terminate this   

  Agreement by giving written notification to the breaching party.     

  Termination will take effect immediately on receipt of notice by the    

  breaching party or five (5) days after mailing of notice, whichever occurs   

  first.  For purposes of this paragraph, material breach of this Agreement   

  includes, but is not limited to, the following: 

 

(a)  District's willful failure to pay Contractor any compensation due within                

thirty (30) days after written demand for payment. 

 (b)  Contractor's failure to deliver the services specified in RFP #G130. 

 (c)  Contractor's material breach of any representation or agreement contained in the   

agreement. 

 (d)  District's material breach of any representation or agreement contained in this 

agreement. 

 

 7.04. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon 30 days written notice to   

  the other. In the event of early termination pursuant to the paragraph and/or   

  Contract Documents, District shall pay Contractor for the reasonable value   

  of services actually provided to the District which in no event shall exceed   

  the Contract price. 

 

 7.05. Upon termination of this Agreement, Contractor shall immediately return to   

  District any and all plans, drawings, specifications, other documents, or   

  materials belonging to the District and used by Contractor in performance of   

  the services described herein. 

 



 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 8.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 8.01. Contractor agrees that all reports processes, and other information or    

  items produced by Contractor while performing services under this    

  Agreement will be assigned to District as the sole and exclusive property of   

  District and District's assignees, nominees, and successors. 

  

 8.02. Any notices required to be given under this Agreement by either party to the   

  other may be affected by personal delivery in writing or by mail, registered   

  or certified, postage prepaid with return receipt requested.  Mailed notices   

  must be addressed to the parties at the addresses appearing in the    

  introductory paragraph of this Agreement, but each party may change the   

  address by giving written notice in accordance with this paragraph.  Notices   

  delivered personally will be deemed communicated as of actual receipt;   

  mailed notices will be deemed communicated as of the day of receipt or the   

  fifth day after mailing, whichever occurs first. 

  

 8.03. This Agreement supersedes any and all agreements, either oral or written,   

  between the parties with respect to the rendering of services by Contractor   

  for District and contains all of the representations, covenants and    

  agreements between the parties with respect to the rendering of those   

  services.  Each party to this Agreement acknowledges that no    

  representations, inducements, promises or agreements, orally or otherwise,   

  have been made by any party, or anyone acting on behalf of any party,   

  which is not contained in this Agreement, and that no other agreement,   

  statement or promise not contained in this Agreement will be valid or   

  binding.  Any modification of this Agreement will be effective only if it is in a  

  writing signed by the party to be charged. 

 

 8.04. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent    

  jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will  

  continue in full force and effect without being impaired or invalidated in any   

  way. 

 

 8.05. If Contractor dies before completing the services under this Agreement, any   

  moneys due Contractor from District under this Agreement as of the date of   



 

 

  death will be paid to the Contractor's executors, administrators, heirs,   

  personal representatives, successors and assigns. 

 

 8.06. If suit is filed regarding the interpretation or enforcement of this Agreement,   

  the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees and costs   

  of suit. 

 

 8.07. Venue of any legal proceedings shall be in Kern County, California and this   

  Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws   

  of the State of California. 

 

Executed at Bakersfield, California on_______________________, 202_. 

 

     GOLDEN EMPIRE TRANSIT DISTRICT 

 

 

      By_________________________________ 

                          Karen King 

 

       

      Title: Chief Executive Officer 

 

      Name:  

       

 

      By_________________________________ 

 

       

      Title______________________________ 


